
Traffic Safety Committee 1-21-16  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, JANUARY 21, 2016 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM – 4:00PM 
REVISED MINUTES 

 
 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter Elwell, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Planning Director Rod Francis, 
Highway/Utilities Superintendent Hannah O’Connell, Police Chief Mike Fitzgerald, School Representative 
Betsy Gentile, Citizen Representative Louise Zak, and Chamber Representative Leo Schiff. 
 
Selectboard member present:  Donna Macomber. 
 
Other staff members present:  Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland, Police Captain Mark Carignan, 
and Library Director Starr LaTronica. 
 
Others present:  Kathleen White, Paul Cameron, Terry A. Carter, Prudence MacKinney, Alice Charkes, 
and others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Peter Elwell called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.   
 
Approve Minutes – December 17, 2015 

MOTION BY BETSY GENTILE, AND SECONDED BY ROD FRANCIS, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM DECEMBER 17, 2015 AS PRESENTED.   

Kathleen White asked to revise line 24 on page 2 to read “Brattleboro Conservation Commission” rather 
than “Railroad Conservation Commission.” 

MOTION BY BETSY GENTILE, AND SECONDED BY ROD FRANCIS, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES 
FROM DECEMBER 17, 2015 AS REVISED.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation 
Paul Cameron, a resident who lives and works downtown, said that the crosswalk crossing Canal Street 
near South Main Street was dangerous.  He said that vehicles often speed up the hill and do not stop for 
pedestrians in the crosswalk.  He said he was nearly hit by a car that morning while he was in the 
crosswalk, and suggested implementing a public education campaign to heighten consciousness and 
awareness of drivers to make them more aware of pedestrians in crosswalks.  Kathleen White suggested 
installing fluorescent portable crossing flags on both sides of the street so pedestrians could carry a flag 
while crossing.  There was some discussion about that difficult intersection.  Elwell said that someone 
from the Town would review the intersection.  Schiff noted that a safer crosswalk with a pedestrian light 
was located at the foot of the hill.  

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Chief Fitzgerald reported that since the last Traffic 
Safety Committee meeting there had been 64 accidents, of which 60 included property damage only and 
4 included personal injuries.  He said there had been no bicycle or pedestrian accidents. There was no 
discussion by the Committee. 

Monthly Report on Traffic Data Collection – Highway/Utilities Superintendent O’Connell distributed and 
reviewed her report dated January 19, 2016 with traffic data.  Terry Carter pointed out that the speed limit 
at this location on Putney Road is 25 mph, rather than 30.  Hannah said that representatives from Holton 
Home requested a pedestrian crossing signal to cross Western Avenue and would be present at the next 
meeting to discuss it.  Alice Charkes suggested having an enforcement campaign addressing the 
excessive speed in the areas mentioned in the report. Terry Carter suggested installing a blinking light 
near the Harris Avenue intersection.  Prudence MacKinney concurred that enforcement was a deterrent.  
There was some discussion by the Committee.  Elwell also said that a State’s traffic engineer advised 
making the speed limit on Western Avenue standard at 30mph, rather than splitting it for cars and 
commercial traffic.  There was no discussion by the Committee about standardizing the speed limit.  
Elwell said that staff would mark the road accordingly. 



Traffic Safety Committee 1-21-16  2  
 

Traffic Calming Plan Safety Action Items 
None. 

Collaboration with Local Motion – Draft Revised Traffic Calming Plan.  O’Connell said that she had been 
working with Katelin Brewer-Colie, from Local Motion (who was present by telephone), to refine the 
Town’s existing Traffic Calming Plan (TCP).  O’Connell said that some goals in revising the TCP were to 
provide clear and objective criteria for determining why/how traffic calming projects move forward, clarify 
the process around how Safety Action Requests were handled, and develop a process flow chart.  She 
provided a revised TCP and reviewed many of the proposed revisions.  The Committee and participants 
reviewed and discussed the proposed changes in detail, and offered additional changes.  Elwell said that 
further comments or changes were to be submitted by January 29. 

Safe Streets – Community Project for Safer Streets.  Kathleen White, from Safe Streets (a citizen 
advocacy organization), spoke about a recent community meeting in Newport with AARP who sponsored 
a workshop (“Our Town, Slow It Down”) to reduce vehicular speed on Main Street in Newport, Vermont 
and make it safer.  She asked if the Committee would be interested in supporting or taking part in such an 
event in Brattleboro.  Alice Charkes, from Safe Streets, suggested a 1/2 day workshop/forum where Town 
staff could hear from residents about their concerns, could share information about planned infrastructure 
projects, and assemble volunteers to work on such projects.  She envisioned that other groups, such as 
Safe Streets and AARP, could also participate in the forum and interact with the residents.  There was 
discussion by the Committee.  It was generally agreed that such a forum would be positive and that Safe 
Streets could continue discussions with AARP to plan such an event in collaboration with Town staff. 

Parking Meter in Front of Library – Assistant Town Manager Moreland said that a free parking space in 
front of the Library was discussed at the last Traffic Safety meeting.  He spoke about the possibilities of 
modifying the parking meter apparatus to provide a space with free parking or limited parking of 15 
minutes.  He said that either change would require amendments to the parking ordinances.  Library 
Director Starr LaTronica spoke in support of having a dedicated space for people making short trips into 
the Library.  There was a brief discussion about the advantages of such a space, considering free/limited 
parking in other downtown areas (such as in front of the post office), and maintaining parking uniformity in 
the downtown area.  

MOTION BY ROD FRANCIS, AND SECONDED BY LOUISE ZAK, TO INSTALL A FREE 15-MINUTE 
METER OUTSIDE OF THE LIBRARY AND RECONSIDER EXPANDING THE NUMBER OF SPACES.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Other Business 
None. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 5:20PM. 
 


